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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 51ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE LASCELLES 
EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, JUNE 
1, 2018 AT THE JAMAICA CONFERENCE CENTRE, 14-20 PORT ROYAL STREET, KINGSTON, JAMAICA, 
COMMENCING AT 5:00 P.M. ALL MEMBERS ARE INVITED TO ATTEND. REGISTRATION BEGINS AT 
4:30 P.M.

NICOLE GRAHAM – SECRETARY

1. REFRESHMENTS

2. ASCERTAIN THAT A QUORUM IS PRESENT

3. OPENING PRAYER

4. OBITUARY

5. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

6. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

7. AMENDMENTS AND CORRECTIONS OF
 50TH AGM MINUTES

8. ADOPTION AND CONFIRMATION OF
 50TH AGM MINUTES

9. MATTERS ARISING

10. REPORTS:

 A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 B. AUDITOR’S AND TREASURER’S

 C. CREDIT COMMITTEE

 D. SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

11. DISTRIBUTION OF SURPLUS

12. FIXING OF LIABILITIES

13. NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT AND
 ELECTION OF OFFICERS

 A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 B. SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

 C. CREDIT COMMITTEE

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

15. VOTE OF THANKS

16. ADJOURNMENT

17. CLOSING PRAYER

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

AGENDA
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MINUTES
MINUTES OF THE FIFTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
THE LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
 
HELD AT THE JAMAICA CONFERENCE CENTRE, 14-20 PORT ROYAL STREET, KINGSTON  
FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2017, COMMENCING AT 6:00P.M.

CALL TO ORDER:

The Chairman and President, Mr. Ryan Muir, having 
ascertained a quorum, called the meeting to order at 
6:00 p.m.

PRAYER:

Member, Pauline Henclewood offered prayer, after 
which the Chairman asked everyone to stand and say 
the Prayer of St. Francis of Assisi. 

This was preceded by a minute’s silence in memory 
of members, Jennifer Headman, Michael Evans, Keith 
Hewitt, Kenneth Blair, Kesia Bernard-Hague, Andrea 
Davis-Edwards, Fabian Dale, Anaena Smith, Owen 
McLean, Glasgow Blackstock, Richard Grant and 
Michael Henry, who transitioned during the year.

WELCOME:

The Chairman extended a warm welcome to all in 
attendance to the 50th Annual General Meeting. 

He extended special welcome to Miss Karen Little 
and Miss Tenecia Facey from the Department of                     
Co-operatives;  Miss Vera Lindo and Miss Tanya Brown 
from the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League; 
Miss Kerry-Ann South from CUFMC; Mr. Robert Carr 
from JCCUL Stabilization Unit; Ms. Nyssa  Johnson 
and Bevin Goode  from KPMG; Mr. Dennis Brown 
from JCIA and Miss Joyce James and Yvonne Bernard, 
stenotype writers; Mr. Owen Dillon, President, Nestle 
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union (NJCCU); Mr. 
Richard Hutchinson, Treasurer of the Nestle Jamaica 
Co-operative Credit Union; Mr. Robert Grandison, a 
member of the NJCCU’s Supervisory Committee and 
Mr. Evan Dunn also from Nestle; Ms. Kaydian Gordon 
Secretary of PWD  Co-operative Credit Union and 
Mr. Colonel Euken Mills, our member and CEO of our 
security company, Eclectic Security Services Limited. 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:

Apologies were received on behalf of Director Benjamin 
Pringle and Mrs. Patricia Jumpp from the Supervisory 
Committee as they were unable to attend, and for 
Director Roger Simmonds who would be late.

Mr. Weeman Clarke noted the absence of Director 
Benjamin Pringle and stated that he had not seen him at 
an AGM for the last seven years.  The Chairman stated 
that for religious reasons he was unable to attend and 
had sent his apologies.

MINUTES OF THE 49th ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING:

The Minutes were taken as read on a motion moved 
by Ricardo Lewis (New Yarmouth) and seconded by 
Weeman Clarke. 

Corrections to the Minutes:

Page 6, 1st column, 1st line ‘Maria Clarke’ should read 
‘Mario Clarke’
Page 8, 1st column, figure for Retained Earnings should 
read ‘$995,243’

The Minutes were approved on a motion moved by 
Beautilyn Douglas (Federated Pharmaceutical) and 
seconded by Yvonne Lewis (Guardian General)

Matters Arising:  

Mr. Michael Ireland asked for an update on the $2 
Million that was expected to be paid over from the 
Government for tax recoverable.  The Chairman advised 
that the $2 Million was received, but no additional sum 
had since been paid over.

REPORTS:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Report was taken as read on a motion moved by 
Julie Bailey (New Yarmouth) and seconded by Jody-Ann 
Smith (AJAS).

The Chairman stated that they would be coming to the 
membership later in the meeting in terms of a merger 
that the Board had been discussing from February 
2016 with Nestle Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union.  

He thanked the Almighty God for His continued 
blessings on the management and volunteers from 
the different committees; the membership for their 
loyalty, the management and staff, the liaison officers, 
the sponsoring companies and supporting entities 
including J. Wray & Nephew Limited, the Jamaica Co-
operative Credit Union League and its related group of 
companies, the Registrar of Co-operatives and Friendly 
Societies, Smith & Associates and KPMG.

He then thanked his former Directors for their 
dedication and commitment. 

A member congratulated the Credit Union for having 
been engaged in merger discussions, but bemoaned 
the fact that it should have started many years ago.  
The Chairman stated that over the years, numerous 
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invitations were sent out to “employee based” credit 
unions and “medium sized” credit unions, but only 
two credit unions ever responded; that is Nestle and 
Correctional Services.  The discussion with Correctional 
Services did not progress as the Board had expected.  
However, with Nestle, there were negotiations, 
discussions and some agreements were arrived at.   
Notwithstanding this, he stated that they were still 
actively looking for other partners because being an 
employee based credit union, there were restrictions 
to a certain type of membership and for growth and 
development going forward, persons would have to 
come in and join on a regular basis.  

Mr. Weeman Clarke stated that there were missed 
opportunities in relation to ICD and Marine and Allied 
Credit Unions.  The Chairman stated that discussions 
were held with them, but they were not interested and 
formed partnerships with other credit unions.  

The Chairman again challenged the membership to 
participate in the annual Christmas treats where the 
credit union visits Ward 4 at the Bustamante Children’s 
Hospital and the Golden Age Home in Vineyard Town 
and hand out gifts and bring cheer to the sick and shut-
ins.  These events, he stated, are normally only attended 
by Board members and staff although numerous 
appeals have been made to the wider membership to 
participate.

There being no other questions, the Board of Directors 
Report was approved on a motion moved by Mr. 
Weeman Clarke, and seconded by Mr. Wayne Clarke. 

TREASURER’S AND AUDITOR’S REPORT:

The Treasurer, Mr. Andrew Bell, asked that the Auditor’s 
Report be taken as read.  This was accepted on a 
motion moved by Eric Thompson, and seconded by Joy 
Gowdie.

The Treasurer’s Report was taken as read on a motion 
moved by Mr. Weeman Clarke, and seconded by Jody-
Ann Smith.

Mr. Weeman Clarke asked for an explanation as it 
related to the Income Statement Summary as presented 
on Page 15, especially as it related to the Net Interest 
Income and Non-Interest Income.  The Treasurer 
directed him to Page 25 which gave further details.  

Mr. Michael Ireland questioned whether in light of the 
significant drop in surplus in 2016 to which the notes 
spoke to loan loss being the reason, whether that 
meant that bad debts had doubled.  Mr. Bell stated that 
the loan loss figure had to be increased to reflect the 
new Bank of Jamaica requirement, as well as the new 
Accounting Standards being adopted.

Mr. Clarke reminded the Treasurer that the AGM 
appropriated $14.7 Million last year to loan loss and 
questioned why money was taken out of the current 
revenue to deal with the issue, when there was a loan 
loss reserve of $14 Million.

Director Wayne Hardie explained that when moving 
from one figure to the next, any difference has to go 
through the P&L Account.

Mr. Clarke questioned how stringent was the oversight 
in terms of delinquency as, as at the end of December 
2016, the delinquency figure stood at $27 million.  Mr. 
Bell stated that there was robust management of the 
delinquency, which resulted in the reduction in the 
delinquency ratio.

Mr. Clarke added that there needed to be some focus, 
because if uncollected it would affect the bottom 
line. Mr. Bell assured him that very few loans were 
uncollected and although they were charged off, they 
are sent to the collecting agents, both in-house and 
external, who assiduously track down these members 
who are indebted to the organization.

The Treasurer’s Report was approved on a motion 
moved by Julie Bailey (New Yarmouth) and  seconded 
by Ricardo Lewis (New Yarmouth) 
Auditor’s Report was approved on a motion moved 
by Rose Baronette- Samuels (AJAS) and seconded by 
Sharon Jackson (Select Brands) 

CREDIT COMMITTEE REPORT:

The Report presented by Mr. Wayne Clarke was taken 
as read on a motion moved by Andre Scott (Wray & 
Nephew) and seconded by Wesley Cameron (AJAS).

The floor was opened for questions.  

Questioned by Mr. Weeman Clarke as to whether any 
loans were disapproved, Mr. Wayne Clarke stated that 
four (4) loans were disapproved for several reasons.  
Mr. Weeman Clarke suggested that these be included 
in next year’s report.  Mr. Eric Thompson disagreed 
with Mr. Weeman Clarke’s suggestion that these be 
included in the report, as he did not see the significance 
for doing this.  Mr. Wayne Clarke stated that the Board 
would make the decision whether to report on it or not.

The Credit Committee Report was approved on a 
motion moved by Ricardo Lewis (New Yarmouth) and 
seconded by Sharon Findlay (Wray & Nephew) 

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT:

The Assistant Treasurer, Mr. Wayne Hardie, was invited 
to present the report, as there was no representative 
from the Supervisory Committee present at the 
meeting. 

The Report was taken as read on a motion moved by 
Beautilyn Douglas (Federated Pharmaceuticals) and 
seconded by Carol Morgan (Polypet) 

Mr. Weeman Clarke queried as to how many times the 
Committee met, but Mr. Hardie informed him that he 
did not write the report or was a part of the Committee, 
but assumed that the Committee met once per month.  
He stated that the Chairman resigned because of work 
commitment, and a new Chairman was appointed 

MINUTES
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and one or two members resigned due to other 
commitments and he had no doubt that their absence 
from the AGM was due to work commitment.

Questioned further by Mr. Clarke as to whether 
the Committee was doing a good job, Mr. Hardie 
responded that the Nominations Committee made 
recommendations which members would be asked to 
vote on later in the meeting.

Colonel Euken Mills queried whether there was an 
update on risk assessment, business continuity, fit and 
proper policy and procedure. The Chairman stated that 
these were constantly reviewed throughout the year, 
as could be seen from the findings of the audit, and 
members are being asked to update their personal 
information and whenever a member was appointed 
to any committee or on the Board they had to provide 
certain information so as to declare them fit and proper.   
As it pertains to business continuity, the Chairman 
indicated that the policy was being finalized.  

Mr. Hardie reminded the meeting that business 
continuity had to do with whether or not the Credit 
Union suffers from a disaster and how quickly the 
Credit Union would be able to function thereafter.  

Members were informed that of the recommendations 
made by the Supervisory Committee, half had been 
completed and the rest are being worked on assiduously.  

Questioned by Mr. Clarke as to where the Credit Union 
would be housed should there be a major disaster and 
the present building was rendered inhabitable, Mr. 
Hardie stated that the second site would be the New 
Yarmouth site.

There being no further questions, the report was 
approved on a motion moved by Colonel Euken Mills, 
and seconded by Mr. Weeman Clarke.

The Standing Order was suspended on a motion 
moved by Mr. Weeman Clarke, seconded by Ms. Julie 
Bailey to amend the agenda to facilitate prizes and 
Resolution after the Fixing of the Maximum Liability. 

DISTRIBUTION OF SURPLUS 

The Treasurer tabled the Distribution of Surplus as 
presented in the leaflet circulated to all members 
outlining the distribution of the $17.4 Million surplus. 

Member Oliver Dunbar queried how much money 
was now in the Building Fund, to which the Treasurer 
responded $23.7 Million.  

Questioned by Mr. Clarke as to whether there was 
an intention to purchase a building in the foreseeable 
future, the Chairman stated that the building which 
now housed the Credit Union was leased from J Wray 
& Nephew and the lease was renewable every five (5) 
years and there was the option to sell it to the Credit 
Union should they decide to sell. However, should they 
change their mind, the $23M could go towards paying 
down on a building.

The recommendation, as put forward for the 
distribution of surplus, was unanimously approved on 
a motion moved by the Treasurer, and seconded by Mr. 
Oliver Dunbar.

FIXING OF MAXIMUM LIABILITY:

In keeping with the Rules of the Credit Union,  it was 
proposed that the Maximum Liability be fixed at 10 
times the Society’s Capital and Reserve Fund.

This was accepted on a motion moved by the Treasurer, 
and seconded by the President.

Prizes

At this juncture there were prizes given out to the 
membership.

RESOLUTIONS:

To accept the Transfer of Engagement of Nestle 
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union Limited to 
Lascelles Employees & Partners Co-operative Credit 
Union Limited 

The Chairman gave a brief outline on Nestle.  He 
stated that it was an employee based Credit Union 
situated in Linstead, with assets of $100 million and its 
members drawn from Nestle Jamaica.  Nestle had been 
a profitable Credit Union over the years, but would 
face challenges with the implementation of the BOJ 
Regulations, as they do not have a software that could 
be used for efficient business transacting, which was 
one of the requirements under the BOJ Regulations.  
Realising these challenges, they saw it prudent to 
discuss and negotiate with us to be a part of our Credit 
Union.  Bringing them on board, he stated, would be 
beneficial to both entities which would benefit from 
economies of scale.  

He asked that the Resolution be taken as read.  This was 
unanimously accepted on a motion moved by moved 
by Mr. Andre Scott (Wray & Nephew) and seconded by 
Mr. Weeman Clarke.

He further stated that once the Resolution was passed, 
two members of the NJCCU Board would assume 
positions on the LEPCCU Board, and likewise two 
members from their Supervisory Committee and two 
members from their Credit Committee would also 
assume positions on the respective committees.

This transfer, he stated could be undertaken, as years 
ago the Bond had been opened, so as to accommodate 
us taking membership from any sector.  

He opened the floor at this juncture for any questions.  

Questioned by Mr. Michael Ireland if their office in 
Linstead would be maintained, the Chairman stated 
that this arrangement would have to continue.  They 
now have in place one staff member and that person 
would act as the liaison officer between both entities.

MINUTES
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Queried as to the benefits to be gained by the Nestle 
members, the Chairman responded that they would 
now have a debit and credit card and they would be 
able to go on-line and get their membership and 
account information, and enjoy the product offerings 
that Lascelles has.  

The membership of Nestle, he stated, unanimously 
voted for the transfer at their AGM.  

He invited Miss Little from the Department of                     
Co-operatives and Friendly Societies to assist in the 
voting.

Miss Lyttle stated that 123 members were currently 
in the room and for the resolution to be passed, 75% 
of that number or 91 members, had to vote for the 
resolution.  The resolution was put to the members and 
118 members voted in favour. 

The Chairman then asked that Resolution 2 dealing 
with Interpretations and Resolution 3 dealing with the 
amendments to Rule 4 be taken together.  This was 
taken as read on a motion moved by Wayne Clarke and 
seconded by Rosemarie Robinson.

Miss Little was invited to conduct the voting exercise.

This was unanimously passed since, no member 
opposed the resolutions. 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT:

This was presented by Mrs. Sherie Nash-Seymour.

The Report was taken as read on a motion moved 
by  Mr. Michael Ireland and seconded by Rosemarie 
Robinson.

She noted that the slate of directors nominated would 
serve for two years except for Blossom McAnuff who 
would serve the unexpired year by Mr. McDonald who 
resigned from the Board.

She noted that Michelle Bispott did not seek re-
election as she had completed three terms in office and 
extended thanks to her for the service she rendered 
over the years.

Directors retiring were (Term in office - 2 Years):

Retiring                                         Nominated
Roger Simmonds                         Roger Simmonds                       
Andrew Bell                            Andrew Bell                               
Benjamin Pringle              Benjamin Pringle                      
Maurice Bolt                                  Maurice Bolt 

Credit Committee (Term in office - 2 Years)

Retiring    Nominated
Arlene Miles   Arlene Miles
Carol Morgan      Carol Morgan                                  
Wayne Clarke   Wayne Clarke
Deniese Anderson-Whyte Denese Anderson-
    Whyte

It was noted that Mr. Robert Walker resigned during 

the year and Arlene Miles was co-opted for him.

Thanks were extended to Mr. Walker for his years of 
contribution to the Credit Union.

Supervisory Committee (Term in office - 1 Year)

Retiring    Nominated
Marcia Robinson   Marcia Robinson
Michael Lawson                  Annmarie Terrelonge
Jacqueline Mason   Linnette Hopkins
Patricia Jumpp   Patricia Jumpp
Khadine Stewart  Khadine Stewart
Norris Lewis     
Edgar Bennett

It was noted that during the year Arlando Dawson, 
Jacqueline Mason and Edgar Bennett resigned from the 
Committee.  The Committee recognised the invaluable 
services provided by the members who were no longer 
serving on the Committee.

She indicated that this Committee was a seven (7) 
member Committee and had now been reduced to five 
(5), as there was difficulty getting a quorum.

The Nominating Committee Report was accepted on 
a motion moved by Karen Gooden, and seconded by 
Opal Williams-Brooks.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS:   
 
Miss  Karen Lyttle, representative from the Department 
of Co-operatives and Friendly Societies was invited to 
guide the election process.

Board of Directors:

She outlined the procedures for the election.  She asked 
three times for nominations from the floor.  Hearing 
none, the following persons were duly elected to the 
Board of Directors for the next two years.

Roger Simmonds
Andrew Bell
Benjamin Pringle
Maurice Bolt

And for one year, Mrs. Blossom McAnuff.

Credit Committee:

Nominations were invited from the floor three times.  
There being none, the following persons were duly 
elected to serve for two years.

Arlene Miles
Carol Morgan
Wayne Clarke
Denise Anderson-Whyte

Supervisory Committee:  

There were no nominations tendered from the floor.  
The following persons were duly elected.

MINUTES
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Marcia Robinson
Patricia Jumpp
Khadine Stewart
Linnette Hopkins
Annmarie Terrelonge

Delegates to the League

Nominated were:

President}                        Delegates 
Treasurer}                               
Vice President        }       Alternate Delegate
Assistant Treasurer}

This was accepted on a motion moved by Seana 
Johnson, and seconded by Charmaine Roberts.

She advised the elected volunteers to meet within ten 
days as stipulated by their Rules and elect the officers 
of the different committees.  The names and addresses 
of all volunteers, along with their positions should be 
forwarded to the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union 
League and the Department of Co-operatives and 
Friendly Societies.

Any other Business:

Mr. Kevin Robinson expressed concern that though the 
Credit Union was trying to survive through mergers, 
that there were no differentiating products between 
the banks and the aggressive micro-lenders and that in 
order for the Credit Union to be competitive and remain 
relevant, it needed to have unique products to attract 
the members.  He also stated that the Credit Union 
should place greater emphasis on micro-financing.  

The Chairman stated that they were cognizant of this 
and so they had recently introduced a product called 
‘Cash-een’ where members could get $150,000 cash 
immediately at a very low interest rate to purchase 
furniture.

Mrs. Zoe Ferril Rhoden, Marketing Manager, asked 
Mr. Kevin Robinson and any other member to forward 
any suggestions they have as to how the Credit Union 
could differentiate itself in the marketplace.   

As it related to micro-financing, the Chairman indicated 
that the Credit Union had always been involved in this.

The Chairman informed the meeting that the 50th 
Anniversary celebrations would commence in October 
2017 and end next year, December 2018.    

At this juncture the drawing of the Gate prize of 
$35,000, plus three cash prizes were done.

Vote of Thanks:

Mrs. Blossom McAnuff was asked to move the vote of 
thanks.  

She thanked the members and guests who made the 
afternoon a success.

She expressed special thanks to the Conference Centre 
and Jackie Tyson for the food, Print Source Limited for 
the printing of the books, and the stenographers, Joyce 
James and Yvonne Bernard.   

She thanked the various sponsors,  J Wray & Nephew, 
Select Brand, National Baking, and Facey Commodity. 

She acknowledged the Board members who guided the 
proceedings and the other committee members who 
contributed to the success of the meeting. 

She expressed appreciation to the new partner, Nestle 
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union Limited. 

Members were invited to partake of the refreshments.

Termination:

The meeting was terminated at 8:42 p.m.

MINUTES
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2017

Our Founders may not be known to most of us, but one 
thing is certain - “a good foundation has been laid!” 
Our beloved members, on behalf of the Board of 
Directors, I can confidently report on the past financial 
year 2017 (FY 2017) of our Credit Union, as another year 
of great success. The mighty hand of God was upon us, 
as we were able to negotiate successfully the financial 
environment and the various challenges, in what can be 
described as an unusual year. We boldly executed our 
plans and managed our affairs and the positive results 
are evident for our members and the world to see.

Strategic Direction
We have updated our new 5-year strategic outlook (2017-
2021), and are diligently surveying the environment for 
opportunities that we can undertake to assist in our 
persistent growth and success. 

We remain flexible and proactive as participants in the 
financial industry, despite our “medium size” ratings. 
Wherever we can influence changes to our benefit, we 
will be more than willing to take on those challenges for 
the betterment of our Credit Union.

We have developed numerous channels for garnering 
feedback from our members through questionnaires 
and surveys, online and offline (in-house) complaint or 
feedback methods. This will enable us to always place 
our members’ needs at the forefront of our operations, 
so we can always be and remain their financial institution 
of choice.

Bank of Jamaica (BOJ) Regulations & Our Readiness:

The drafts of the newly proposed Credit Union Special 
Provisions Act (2018) and the proposed amended         

Co-operatives Society Act (2018), which are two critical 
pieces of legislation required for us to be governed and 
regulated by the Bank of Jamaica (BOJ), were reviewed 
by credit unions and feedback submitted to the League. 
The Credit Union Movement have provided feedback 
to the BOJ and these are being considered before the 
legislations will be presented to Parliament for approval 
sometime in 2018.

We continue to take prudent measures to improve 
our readiness and to ensure that our application for 
our License from BOJ, when they become our official 
regulator and supervisor, will be successful. On an 
ongoing basis, the League, who facilitates the lobbying 
on behalf of the Credit Union Movement, encourages all 
credit unions, to improve our capital base at every possible 
opportunity. We are pleased to advise our members that 
our institutional capital is at 13% (FY 2017) up from 12% 
last FY 2016.

Mergers: 

We Did It!
Yes, we were able to successfully negotiate and execute 
a Transfer of Engagement (a form of merger) with Nestle 
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union (NJCCU)  effective 
October 1, 2017.  Again, we thank the members of both 
individual entities before the merger for approving the 
transfer and receipt of NJCCU engagement into Lascelles 
Employees & Partners Co-operative Credit Union 
(LEPCCU), without their support it would not have been 
successful.

The merger brought together NJCCU with total assets 
of over $100M and LEPCCU with total assets of almost 
$1B. The total LEPCCU staff complement of 12 increased 
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by 2 with the addition of those existing at NJCCU. The 
Offices at the NJCCU location in Bybrook, Linstead has 
increased our physical & virtual service points with our 
membership. NJCCU members are now able to access 
our online banking, ATM card and more comprehensive 
operating software and processes among other features.

We are now able to tap into a larger market by way of 
the employees of the associated companies of Nestle, 
such as the Seprod Group and the Mussons Group. We 
were able to incorporate the skills of 2 members each 
as volunteers from the Supervisory, Credit & Board 
committees of NJCCU into the corresponding LEPCCU 
committees.

As a unified entity now, LEPCCU will continue to use this 
vehicle as one of the many channels to propel our growth 
exponentially. Having strategically taken the decision in 
prior years to “open our Bond”, we will be relentless in 
our pursuit of favorable mergers or partners for our credit 
union, in line with our mandate.

Small & Medium (S&M) Size Peer Grouping:

Our recent merger was only able to realize for us a 
total assets size of over $1.1B, which is still short 
of our immediate short-term target of being a Large 
Credit Union whose minimum asset size is $1.5B. Our 
discussions within the S&M Peer Grouping are on-going, 
with the hope of encouraging others to partner with us.

There are meetings scheduled to discuss, as a group and 
individually, our approach and plans for operating, as the 
BOJ regulations and supervision becomes apparent. We 
will keep our members updated with any progress arising 
from discussions in this regard.

IFRS 9

We have begun the preparation for the advent of the 
IFRS 9 standard, which comes into effect on January 1, 
2018. We participated in the relevant discussion forums, 
the training sessions and exercises provided by the 
League, through its partner, PriceWaterhouseCoopers 
(PWC). Fundamentally, it is a new approach or standard 
to how provision for losses will be done.

Due to the importance and impact of this IFRS 9 new 
standard to the credit union movement, the League 
designed a two-phase implementation plan, of which 
Phase 1 (analysis of requirements and training) and Phase 
2 (Software or System Solution Implementation and 

calculation of Expected Credit Loss – ECL). The funding 
for both phases was covered by the League managed 
Stabilization Fund for the Credit Union Movement.
PWC was employed to manage Phase 1, while for Phase 
2, individual credit unions were to choose the appropriate 
solution from the options provided, that would satisfy 
their situation and to implement by the end of March 
2018.

Our Information and Communication Technology (ICT) 
Platform:

We have seen improvements in our telecommunications 
system this FY 2017, based on the changes made 
previously. We had to defer any major change to our 
computer or financial software platform to facilitate the 
merger with NJCCU, who used the similar Emortelle 
system as LEPCCU. After the merger, towards the end of 
the FY 2017, we were also able to upgrade the Emortelle 
system from version 8.0 (since this version was not going 
to be supported from 2018 onwards) to the current 
version of 9.0.

This upgrade allowed us to also take advantage of new 
features, including “cloud backup” and that of an IFRS 9 
component which was “built-in or seamless”, compared 
to the other options available that would be “add-ons or 
external” to our core Emortelle system.

In 2018, we will continue to improve our technology to 
optimize our efficiencies, effectiveness and the members 
experience by the digitization of our files, records and 
information gathering processes. We also intend to 
facilitate our members’ ability to transact business online 
via our website, such as with the membership application 
process, as well as the loan and the investment application 
processes. 

Currently, these necessary forms are available online 
and can be downloaded from our website (www.
lascellescreditunion.com) to be filled out manually and 
submitted.

Performance Highlights
We cannot overemphasize the positive results that were 
generated from the strategies we pursued in 2017, with 
respect to a very competitive, uncertain and challenging 
economic environment including falling interest rates. In 
the table below, our key performances indicated a certain 
level of stability and overall growth:
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safeguarding the credit union and its members’ assets.

Our net active membership grew by over 454 members 
for 2017. The NJCCU merger provided almost 50% of 
that growth with approximately 225 members.

Outreach Programs 

Credit Union week 2017 was another memorable 
engagement with our beloved members. They 
experienced the best of pampering and delectable cuisine 
for the palate. We also hosted an informative session on 
money management, among other consultations, which 
we had hoped would have been better supported by 
our members based on the significance of the topics 
presented.

Our two adopted charities (children of Ward 4 of the 
Bustamante Children’s Hospital and residents of Block G 
of the Golden Age Home), which we visited in Christmas 
2017 was again poorly supported by our membership. We 
recognize that the timing of the visits with the Christmas 
period may be a bit challenging because of clashes with 
other activities at that time. Hence, we are seeking to 
change our visiting times to other available dates within 
the year that are convenient to the various charities and 
our members. We will keep the membership informed of 
the new dates when decided.

Directors’ Meeting Attendance
At the last AGM, a number of volunteers were elected 
to the Board of Directors of the credit union.  As elected 
officials, the responsibility of governing the credit union 
has been bestowed on us.  As such, our attendance at 
meetings are always critical.  

The meeting attendance records of our Board Members 
for the year 2017 are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FY 2017 comparative figures vs. that of FY 2016 
reflected another exceptional year and growth driven 
by our merger and other strategies pursued; such as, 
our motor vehicle promotions offered twice in the year. 

This allowed for an increase in our Total Assets of 
over $152M or 16% year on year. NJCCU’s merger 
contributed approximately $29M of this growth.

Our credit union continued the strategy of very 
attractive savings interest rates offering on both the 
members voluntary shares and deposits, which resulted 
in LEPCCU experiencing share savings growth of over 
24% or $78M and deposits growth of over 9% or $28M.

Despite lowering or reducing loan rates, in order to 
remain competitive in the market, we were able to 
grow our Loan portfolio by over 22% or approximately 
$151M. NJCCU’s contribution to this growth was 
approximately $51M.

Surplus available for distribution for the year, showed 
a slight decline due to a number of reasons, including 
increased unemployment among the membership, 
which affected loan repayments and hence our 
delinquency and increased provision for loss and loan 
charge offs. The available surplus for 2017, is about 
$13M, which is a slight decrease of about $3M over 
last year.

We still urge our unemployed members or those 
separated from their employers to remain in contact 
with the credit union, as we try to assist, as best as 
possible, during their period of unemployment. We 
are acutely aware of the unemployed members’ plight 
and challenges to meet their loan repayments and 
commitments. There are many options which the credit 
union would be willing to undertake, to ensure that the 
unemployed or distressed member’s best interest is at 
heart or taken into consideration, while satisfying and 
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notable entities, such as the Jamaica Co-operative 
Credit Union League (JACCUL) and its related group of 
companies, the Registrar of Co-operatives and Friendly 
Societies, Smith & Associates our Internal Auditors and 
KPMG our External Auditors have always provided their 
unfailing support and we appreciate them.

I certainly could not close without acknowledging 
and thanking my beloved fellow Directors for their 
overwhelming support, loyalty and diligence over the 
preceding years and 2017 in particular. We overcame!  
Members could not have elected a better leadership 
group to execute their mandate and to safeguard their 
assets and interests.  Thanks again for the privilege 
granted to us.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Ryan Muir
President

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Obituaries
During the year, some of our beloved members made 
their transition.  The Board of Directors of LEPCCU 
extends sincere condolences to their families, well-
wishers and friends.  May their souls rest in peace:

1. Newton Cole – Select Brands (also formerly of JWN
    & Lascelles Ltd.)

2. George Morrison – Kingston Industrial Garage

50th Anniversary Celebrations
Plans are far advanced with respect to our Credit Union 
50th Anniversary Celebrations of which the official 50 
years of existence is the 19th of September 2018. 

We are planning various prizes and surprises and year-
round celebrations to include a Church Service set for 
Sunday, September 16, 2018, to which all our members 
are invited. Also, an Awards Ceremony is being planned 
for Saturday, September 22, 2018, to recognize a 
number of our Volunteers and Staff who have given 
outstanding and long and faithful service to the credit 
union over the years.

Please note the dates in your diaries and stay tuned for 
further updates.

Appreciation
It would be remiss of me if I didn’t take this opportunity 
on behalf of the Board of Directors, to first give the 
Almighty God thanks for the successes we enjoyed in 
2017 and continue to enjoy. As Matthew 22:21 reminds 
us to “… Render therefore unto Caesar the things which 
are Caesar’s; and unto God the things that are God’s.”

We also take the opportunity to thank all our committed 
volunteers who stuck to the task and ensured that 
their responsibilities were executed in a professional 
and respectable manner. We thank the statutory 
committees (Credit & Supervisory) and all the other 
Board Sub-Committees, too numerous to mention.

Sincere thanks to all on behalf of the Board of Directors. 
I pray that this general thank you will suffice for anyone 
I may inadvertently leave out. The Lord has blessed 
our credit union beyond measure and we  want to 
express our sincere gratitude to our loyal and dedicated 
members who have stood with us in 2017 and over the 
last 50 years of our existence. 

We must mention and give a heartfelt thank you to our 
committed and hardworking team of Management and 
staff who went beyond the call of duty in successfully 
executing several critical projects throughout the year. 
Though they were limited in numbers, they were by no 
means limited in capabilities. To all our liaison officers 
or contact personnel at the various company locations 
who played their part as well, we say a big thank you! 

Our sponsoring companies and supporting entities, 
including J. Wray and Nephew Ltd. (a Gruppo Campari 
Company) have never forsaken us over the years and 
we say thank you for their unceasing support. Other 
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TREASURER’S REPORT
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2017

OVERVIEW

Lascelles Employees & Partners Co-operative 
Credit Union (LEPCCU) have managed to rise 
above the numerous challenges that they 
encountered during 2017. Our competitive 
environment and changing landscape made it 
more difficult to conduct business.  We benefited 
from fiscal discipline in our country’s fiscal targets; 
such as, the Jamaican dollar was able to close the 
year better than when it started in January 2017. 
At the end of the year, the rate was J$125.09 to 
US$1.00, compared to J$128.44 to US$1.00 in 
December 2016.  The country managed to pass all 
the IMF tests in 2016 and have entered into new 
arrangements with them, that will enable the ability 
to draw down on funds only when they request 
it. Also, the inflation rate for December 2017 was 
0.6%, bringing the 2017 rate to 5.2%.  This is 3.5% 
increase over the 1.7% recorded in 2016.

The Net International Reserves (NIR) increased 
from US$2,719.37M in 2016 to US$3,208.29M, 
or by 18% in 2017.   This would indicate that the 
country would have 40 weeks of money for goods 
import. 

The Credit Union Movement recorded increases 
in savings, loans and assets in 2017, compared to 
2016.  The overall growth for the movement in 
loans was 21.13%, savings 9.66% and total assets 
9.01%.
 
In October 2017, a Transfer of Engagement (merged) 
with Nestle Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union 
Limited came into effect.  This merger, resulted 
in an increase in our loans portfolio of $52M and 
membership of 280.  The merger was successful, 
with the two (2) entities coming together to make 
a very strong brand. Our membership growth 
continues to be faced with challenges because of 
changes within the sponsor companies of our core 
bond.  This has incited us to explore new avenues 
to boost our membership.   
   
The Movement continues to experience 
uncertainty, as the passing of the BOJ Regulations 
remains uncertain. As a result, mergers continue 

to be formed throughout the Movement.  The 
year 2017 ended with a total of 28 credit unions, 
compared to 32 at the beginning of the year. 
LEPCCU continues to engage in discussions with 
prospective merger partners.  We continue to 
ensure that all the BOJ requirements are adhered 
to and measures are put in place to ensure a 
licencing agreement.  

The credit union continues to develop attractive 
and competitive products and services to meet 
our members’ needs.  Some of the changes made 
included:

• We offered a premium service to our members  
who joined our Saver’s Club.  The services 
include, but were not limited to, the reduction 
in loans rate and processing fees. A competitive 
interest rate was offered on the savings in the 
club.

• The introduction of a new loan product 
“Double or Nuttin”. The members could borrow 
double the amount that they brought in to a 
maximum of $2M.  This boosted our savings 
and increased loans.  There was a successful 
take up of this promotion, which increased our 
competiveness and provided better offering to 
our members.

• Offering competitive interest rates on savings 
to encourage our members to save. A special 
package for savings was also offered to our 
members, who were getting bonus payments 
in March. Interest rates as high as 7.5% were 
offered.

• Offering motor vehicle loan promotions at an 
interest rate of 8.5%, which had maximum take 
up at the first offering.  

The Credit Union experienced growth despite 
the challenges during the year.  Some of the key 
indicators showed growth year on year.  Our asset 
base grew by 53% over the last five years and 
16% compared to last year. Our surplus declined 
by 20% to $12.7M, when compared to $16M for 
2016.  This decline in surplus is mainly due to the 
competitive market, increased operating expenses 
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and high interest payments to members.
 
When compared to other credit unions within our 
peer group, we have the highest asset base for the 
year ended 2017.

Financial Performance

Table 1 below highlights the financial performance 
of the Credit Union during the year under review. 
Our Financial Statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and our local Co-
operatives Societies Act. 

Income

The financial performance for 2017 resulted in a 
surplus of approximately $12.7M, compared to 
$16M in 2016, and a decline of $3.3M or 20%. The 
surplus was impacted by increased provisioning for 
loan loss.  Loan interest income increased by $8M 
or 8.17%, compared to prior year loan interest 
income of $96M, while interest expense grew by 
only $1M or 3.68%.

Expenses

The operating expenses for the credit union grew 
by $11.28M or 16.65% compared to the growth in 
the prior year of $0.12M or 0.18%.  The increase 

in the growth was attributed to the merger, as well 
as staff cost, GCT, utilities, and the change in the 
treatment of League and stabilization dues.  We 
also continued to implore our staff to minimize 
costs as much as possible. 

The credit union was able to maintain a ratio below 
8% for operating expenses to average assets as 
stipulated by the standard, as was achieved in 
2016. Despite the credit union remaining below 
our target of 8% for our operating expenses to 
average assets, our total net income to average 
asset declined marginally in 2017 compared to 
2016, moving from 1.5% to 1.14%. This can be 
explained by our assets growing faster than our 
income. 

We continue to manage these ratios in order to be 
compliant with the Movement, as well as prepare 
ourselves for the pending Regulations, which will 
entail more compliance requirements.  The League 
continues to facilitate meetings that may bring 
credit unions together to benefit from economies 
of scale.

BALANCE SHEET

The Credit Union continues to grow in all areas as indicated in Table 2 in the five-year summary of 
performance outlined on the following page.



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •16 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

TREASURER’S REPORT

We increased members’ savings and deposits by 
33.26% or $106.64M, compared to prior year of 
$306.02M, as a result of our merger with Nestle 
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union Limited and 
special interest rate offerings.  Our investments 
and liquid assets reduced by $29.7M or 12.42% 
compared to prior year, we were able to maintain 
an average above the standard during the year, 
closing at 24%.  The loans portfolio YOY increase 
of $150.94 or 22.24% was a major boost to our 
total assets YOY growth of 16%.  This loans growth 
can be reflective in our reduction in liquid assets, 
and attributed to the Nestle merger and loans 
promotions. We have doubled our marketing 
efforts geared towards maintaining attractive 
investments and savings products, as a means of 
ensuring liquidity.

Ratio Analysis

The table 3 shows a five year analysis of our 
performance measured by the League’s PEARL 
ratios.

Our ratios continue to move in a positive direction 
and we are monitoring those that require immediate 
attention via the execution of our strategic plan. 

Liquidity ratio: 

Liquid assets, as a percentage (%) of savings and 
deposits, is 24%, which is within the standard rate 
of 20-30% and reflects a reduction of 4% over 
2016, as seen in Table 3. We benefited from the 
liquidity ratio being maintained, while our loans 

portfolio showed growth of 22.24%.

Savings & Loans ratio: 

Despite the 33.26% growth in our savings and 
deposits portfolio, the savings to total assets ratio 
was not met, mainly as a result of assets growing 
faster than savings and deposits.  The ratio at the 
end of 2017 was 67%, which is the same as 2016 
and the standard is between 70-80%.  Our loans 
to total assets ratio was achieved at 75%, which is 
a 3% increase compared to 2016.  Our growth in 
the loans portfolio can be attributed to our loans 
promotions during the year and our merger with 
Nestle Co-operative Credit Union.

Delinquency

At the end of December 31, 2017, the delinquency 
rate against our total loans portfolio was 3.58%, 
which is below the PEARLS standard of 5%.   This 
decrease is a marginal move compared to 2016’s 
ratio of 4.06%.  This downward trend is as a result 
of assigning an independent staff to manage this 
portfolio.  Management and staff will be working in 
line with strategy in evaluating the loans portfolio 
and taking effective steps. Efforts will be intensified 
in this regard to ensure that we not only maintain, 
but improve on this ratio.

Table 3: LEPCCU Ratio Summary (for past five 
years).



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 172017 ANNUAL REPORT

TREASURER’S REPORT

THE FUTURE 

Amidst the local and global economic challenges, we forecast being able to maintain our growth and 
profitability.

In anticipation of the implementation of the BOJ Regulations, the Credit Union has started preparations to 
ensure its readiness when same is passed.

It is our aim and objectives that we will continue to:

• Engage other credit unions in the possibility of establishing strategic mergers that will be beneficial to 
our members and for the credit union’s long-term sustainability.

• Maintain communication with our members, with a view to meeting their needs through the 
development of innovative products and services.

• Monitor and analyze the financial market to determine what products will be appealing to our members, 
in order to remain competitive.

• Focus on increasing our savings ratio, by offering attractive interest rates and introduce new savings 
products.

• Give priority attention to our membership drive, to ensure growth in all areas and to remain viable.

Acknowledgements
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the sustainability of the credit union.
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experience.

• Volunteers of the Supervisory, Credit and other Sub-Committees for their dedication to serve and the 
support they provided to ensure effective corporate governance.
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Wayne Hardie
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TREASURER’S REPORT



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 192017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  | 19ANNUAL REPORT | 2016

FINANCIALS
LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED

(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •20 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 212017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •22 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 232017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •24 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 252017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LA
SC

EL
LE

S 
EM

PL
O

YE
ES

 &
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

CO
-O

PE
RA

TI
VE

 C
RE

D
IT

 U
N

IO
N

 L
IM

IT
ED

(A
 S

oc
iet

y R
eg

ist
er

ed
 U

nd
er

 th
e C

o-
op

er
ati

ve
 S

oc
ieti

es
 A

ct
)

ST
AT

EM
EN

T 
O

F 
CH

A
N

G
ES

 IN
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

YE
AR

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
31

, 2
01

7

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •26 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LA
SC

EL
LE

S 
EM

PL
O

YE
ES

 &
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

CO
-O

PE
RA

TI
VE

 C
RE

D
IT

 U
N

IO
N

 L
IM

IT
ED

(A
 S

oc
iet

y R
eg

ist
er

ed
 U

nd
er

 th
e C

o-
op

er
ati

ve
 S

oc
ieti

es
 A

ct
)

ST
AT

EM
EN

T 
O

F 
CH

A
N

G
ES

 IN
 E

Q
U

IT
Y 

CO
N

T’
D

YE
AR

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
31

, 2
01

7

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 272017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •28 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 292017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •30 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 312017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •32 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 332017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •34 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 352017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •36 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 372017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •38 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 392017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •40 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 412017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •42 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 432017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •44 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 452017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •46 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 472017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •48 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 492017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •50 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 512017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •52 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 532017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •54 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 552017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •56 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 572017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •58 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 592017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •60 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LA
SC

EL
LE

S 
EM

PL
O

YE
ES

 &
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

CO
-O

PE
RA

TI
VE

 C
RE

D
IT

 U
N

IO
N

 L
IM

IT
ED

(A
 S

oc
iet

y R
eg

ist
er

ed
 U

nd
er

 th
e C

o-
op

er
ati

ve
 S

oc
ieti

es
 A

ct
)

N
O

TE
S 

TO
 F

IN
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
YE

AR
 E

N
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

31
, 2

01
7

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 612017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LA
SC

EL
LE

S 
EM

PL
O

YE
ES

 &
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

CO
-O

PE
RA

TI
VE

 C
RE

D
IT

 U
N

IO
N

 L
IM

IT
ED

(A
 S

oc
iet

y R
eg

ist
er

ed
 U

nd
er

 th
e C

o-
op

er
ati

ve
 S

oc
ieti

es
 A

ct
)

N
O

TE
S 

TO
 F

IN
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
YE

AR
 E

N
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

BE
R 

31
, 2

01
7

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •62 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 632017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  •64 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIALS



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 652017 ANNUAL REPORT

CREDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2017

At the 50th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Lascelles Employees & Partners Co-Operative Credit 
Union (LEPCCU), the membership duly elected the following members, to serve on the Credit Committee: 

Mrs. Denese Anderson-Whyte Ms. Carol Morgan 
Mr. Wayne Clarke               Mrs. Claudette Thomas-Warren
Ms. Monique Forrester  Mr. Dev Weller
Mrs. Jody-Ann Harriott-Smith  Mrs. Laverne Williams-Reid
Ms. Arlene Miles 
 
At the first meeting, which was convened on Wednesday, June 21, 2017, Mr. Wayne Clarke was elected 
and returned as Chairman, Mrs. Jody-Ann Harriott-Smith was elected and returned as Vice Chairman 
and Mrs. Claudette Thomas-Warren was elected and returned as Secretary. The Chairman thanked the 
team for accepting the responsibility to provide another year of dedicated service to the membership. The 
final approval of the Transfer of Engagement with the Nestle Jamaica Co-Operative Credit Union became 
effective on October 1, 2017 and as such, Ms. Jodian Beecher and Mr. Marvin Riley were co-opted to 
serve on the credit committee until ratification at the next Annual General Meeting. 

The Credit Committee is an integral part of the operations of the credit union, and the Board implemented 
a Performance Evaluation scheme effective August 1, 2017 to increase accountability. As we take steps 
in the preparation to meet the pending Bank of Jamaica Regulations, the LEPCCU held another Proceeds 
of Crime Act and Anti-Money Laundering Training session in September 2017. Committee meetings are 
convened on Wednesdays at the office of the LEPCCU, to review both new loans and in-house issued 
loans. The Chairman attended quarterly Board meetings during the year and the Credit Committee was 
duly represented at every All Committee Meeting.
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Operating Environment 

The current Jamaican Government, led by the Most 
Hon. Andrew Holness, achieved its IMF targets 
during 2017. The administration announced a “5 
in 4” (5% growth in Gross Domestic Product in 
4 years) objective in the latter part of 2016. The 
Government anticipated a 2% growth for 2017, but 
it was not achieved. The release dated February 13, 
2018 from the Planning Institute of Jamaica (PIOJ) 
estimated real GDP growth of 0.5%, representing 
the fifth year of consecutive growth. The release 
further stated that the Labour Force Survey 
undertaken by the Statistical Institute of Jamaica 
(STATIN), indicated that the unemployment rate as 
at October 2017 was 10.4%, the lowest recorded 
in ten years.  The male unemployment rate was 
7.3%, while the female unemployment rate was 
14.1%. The youth unemployment rate was 25.4%, 
representing the lowest rate recorded since January 
2009.  The total number of employed persons as 
at October 2017 stood at 1,206,800, an increase 
of 27,300 persons relative to October 2016. The 
Jamaican Dollar made a positive turn around in 
2017, appreciating 2.6% from $128.44 at the start 
of the year to $125.00 at December 31st, 2017. 
Inflation for the year was 5.2%, compared to 1.7% 
for 2016. The primary contributors are Food and 
Non-Alcoholic Beverages up 6.7%; Housing, 

Water, Electricity, Gas and Other Fuels up 8.6% 
and Transportation up 3.5%. Inflation by region 
reveals Kingston Metropolitan Area 6.7% and Rural 
Areas 4.2%.

The current economic landscape has challenged 
mainstream financial institutions to increase lending 
facilities, and the proliferation of unregistered 
lending agencies; “Loan Sharks”, creates an 
environment of many financial institutions chasing 
the same limited disposable income of credit 
worthy customers. Notwithstanding, the Credit 
Union continues its sound prudent management 
of lending members’ funds at affordable rates. This 
was made possible by a collaborative approach by 
the Board of Directors, Management, Staff, and 
Committees of the Credit Union.

New Loans approved by the Credit Union 

Chart 1 shows a graphical representation of the 
loans issued in 2017. The graphical line represents 
the number of loans issued and should be compared 
with the vertical axis on the right, while the vertical 
bars represent the value of the loans issued for 
each category, and should be compared to the 
dollar values on the left vertical axis.

Motor Vehicle Loans, for a second consecutive 
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Table 1

Comparison of New Loan Applications

year, is the largest category of loans issued by the Credit Union. The financial sector has responded to the 
low inflation level and the increase in consumer demand for motor vehicles, and the Credit Union has kept 
apace. The loan special offered during the year was well received, surpassing 2016 by 18%. The next two 
largest categories are Personal loans and Debt Consolidation, the latter highlighting the nature of the co-
operative, providing members with debt management options and peace of mind.

Table 1 provides a visual of loans issued during the year. A total of 5,156 new loans were issued, which is 
3,853 loans below last year. Contrastingly, the value of the loans issued amounted to $490m, $60m more 
than 2016. The credit union endeavoured to provide members with the right loan package(s) to achieve 
their financial objectives without the need for recurring financing. As aforementioned, the credit union 
tailored the Motor Vehicle Loan Special specifically for its membership, disbursing a total $180m compared 
to $152m in 2016. The members chose to procure 104 newer trouble-free vehicles, compared to the 150 
acquired last year. Members who wish to maintain their existing vehicles were provided loans of $14m, 
compared to $11m last year. Combining two types of home loans i.e. “Home Improvement” and “Down 
Payment on Property” reveals a positive trend.  Over the period 2015 to 2017 amounts issued were $33m, 
$35m and $64m respectively. The Credit Union remains committed to assisting its members to achieve 
home ownership, and improve their quality of living. 

The credit union faces competition from players in the financial sector and the quasi-financial sector and 
yet provides debt consolidation products, which have increased from $33m last year to $47m. The benefit 
of education must always be reinforced, and it is noteworthy that loans for educational purposes increased 
66% to $36m. The Personal Expenses category shows a decline of $18m, compared to last year, but the 
increases in the other categories are a testament to the productive use of loans by our members.
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Chart 2 shows the graphical trend of the new loans portfolio for the past several years. The graphical line 
represents the total number of loans issued and should be compared with the vertical axis on the right, 
while the vertical bars represent the total value of the loans issued, and should be compared to the dollar 
values on the left vertical axis.

Chart 2 also highlights the demand of our membership for varying loan products to enhance and/or 
supplement their lives. During 2014, the Credit Union experienced the highest level of demand for loans. 
Thereafter, the demand declined; however, the value of loans is higher than previous years, revealing the 
highest disbursement in 2017. Contrastingly, prudent debt management is evident in the years 2012 and 
2017, as members reduced the frequency of borrowing, while fulfilling their objectives. 

This segues into an important point. The frequency of borrowing will adversely affect an individual’s credit 
score. The Credit Union registered with CreditInfo Jamaica Limited in March 2015 and Crif NM Credit 
Assure Limited in July 2016. It is now the policy of financial institutions, and the LEPCCU, to obtain and 
share credit information on members. The Credit Union has taken steps to improve and manage members, 
whose credit rating is less than ‘Average’. We encourage all members to be cognizant of their credit rating and 
allow us to assist them in managing same. 

The Credit Union aims to serve all its members; “big ones” and “little ones”. The “Double or Nutten” loan 
promotion was launched during the year. Also, the “Easi Access Credit Line” facility was increased from 
$30,000 to $50,000 during the year and the terms of the “Easter Loan” were improved.  The competiveness 
and relevance of the credit union was further enhanced effective June 1, 2017, with the discontinuation 
of the 3-month waiting period for new members. Due diligent procedures were implemented for new 
members as an added measure.

Chart 2

Comparison of New Loans 2012 to 2017



LASCELLES EMPLOYEES & PARTNERS CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED  • 692017 ANNUAL REPORT

Table 2

CREDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

Loan Waiver Approvals

During 2017, 54 loan waivers were approved, 
42 of which were primarily for “High Credit 
Score” reported by a Credit Bureau. Each 
request was scrutinised in great detail by the 
Committee before approval. In most instances 
there was an outstanding debt which was 
previously settled, but the debt has to be 
carried on the credit report for two years 
before it can be removed. Again, members 
must educate themselves on the importance 
of the Credit Report. Should a member be 
overdue by $300 for more than 30 days or 
utilises more than 90% of their credit card, 
their risk will be deemed “High”. These are 2 

mere examples, but emphasises the point of how fragile one’s credit score can be and the need to be 
educated.    

Based on the total loan portfolio, the Lascelles Employees & Partners Co-Operative Credit Union 
continues to perform well, as evident in the Allowance for Loan Losses in the Audited Financial 
Statements. The Allowance is $18.6m or 2.2% of the loan portfolio of $829m.  

The Credit Committee is pleased to have been given the opportunity to serve its valued members 
and we hope that they will continue to make the LEPCCU their financial institution of choice. We look 
forward to working with all stakeholders toward achieving another successful year.

Our thanks to the Board of Directors for their continued support and guidance; to the Management 
and Staff of the Credit Union and particularly, the Loans Department for their efficient processing of 
loans.
 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Wayne Clarke
Chairman
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The Members of the Supervisory Committee are elected by the Lascelles Employees & Partners Co-operative Credit 
Union’s membership for the purposes of audit and supervision.  The Committee is responsible for providing oversight 
of the financial, operational and compliance processes and to ensure that the Credit Union operates in a safe and 
sound manner.  In addition, the committee is required to report its activities to the Board of Directors on a monthly 
basis.  

At the 50th Annual General Meeting held on June 16, 2017, the Supervisory Committee was elected in accordance 
with the rules and stipulation of the credit union, for the period of one (1) year commencing June 2017 to May 2018. 

The current committee comprises of:

Patricia Jumpp   (Chairman)
Michelle Blake*   (Vice Chairman)
Linnette Hopkins  (Secretary)
Ann-Marie Terrelonge 
Robert Grandison*
Andrew Gordon*
Khadine Stewart

During the review period, a total of six (6) committee meetings were convened and at one sitting there was a re-
election of officers, as outlined below. 

Movement since the last Annual General Meeting:

• Miss Marcia Robinson, who was elected, served as Chairperson. However, she tendered her resignation at the 
end of the year. 

• The Supervisory Committee gained three (3) additional members which resulted from the Transfer of Engagement 
with Nestle Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union (NJCCU) Limited effective October 1, 2017. 

• Mrs. Patricia Jumpp, who served as Deputy Chair, was elected as Chairperson and Michelle Blake as Deputy 
Chair.

*members transferred from Nestle Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union Limited.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S REPORT
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2017
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Policies Approved by the Board 

The following Policy documents were reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors:

1. Asset & Liability Management Policy
2. Capital Management Policy
3. Delinquency and Collections Policy
4. Fixed Deposit Policy and Procedures
5. Investment Policy and Procedures
6. Nominations Policy and Procedures Manual
7. Standing Order Policy and Procedures
8. Human Resources Policy

Audits

We continued to engage the services of Smith & 
Associates Chartered Accountants and the scope of 
the audits conducted for the year 2017 were as follows: 

• Internal Control over Cash
• Bank of Jamaica (BOJ) Reports
• Management Reports and Account Reconciliations
• Loans Disbursed to Volunteers, Staff and other 

Connected Parties
• Investments with other Financial Institutions
• Dormant Accounts
• Know Your Customer (POCA)

There were no high-risk recommendations made by 
the Auditors that required the Board’s decision. We 
commend the management team as only a few areas 
of concerns were raised by the auditors and the areas 
identified were addressed in a timely manner.

Training

During the year, 90% of the Supervisory Committee 
members participated in the training sessions 
highlighted below:

• AML training session facilitated by the Credit Union 
and werevvv awarded a Certificate of Participation 
upon successful completion of same.

• The team also participated in a presentation 
conducted by the Credit Union League. The areas 
covered were the Roles and Responsibilities of 
the Supervisory Committee and Policies and 
Procedures.

Proposed Plans for 2018

Audit Plans
Based on the new thrust in the audit requirements and 
out of that need assessment and in particular those 
mentioned in the points below, the decision was taken 
and approved by the Board, to engage Centralized 
Strategic Services (CSS) Limited as Internal Auditors for 
the period January to December 2018.

• The Transfer of Engagement with Nestle Jamaica 
Co-operative Credit Union Limited effective 
October 1, 2017. 

• The upgrade of Emortelle to Version 9.1, and
• The impending regulatory framework of the Credit 

Unions being regulated by the Central Bank, Bank 
of Jamaica (BOJ) 

The audit plan for the upcoming year will focus on, but 
not limited to, the following areas:

• Regulatory and Compliance to include BOJ 
Readiness

• Internal Controls and Operational Review – Debit 
Card Management and ATM Review

• IT Operations Functions Review, IT Processes and 
Access Controls

• Financial Review – Liquidity and Working Capital 
Management

Policies for Review

The Credit Union currently has several policies that are 
up for annual review. However, it is the intention that 
during these review processes, some policies will be 
amalgamated.

Notwithstanding, the following Policies, among others, 
are targeted for review:

• Credit Policy
• Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Policy
• Whistle Blowing Policy
• Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Policy (being 

developed)
• Disaster Management and Business Continuity 

Policy (being developed)

The mandate of the committee to oversee the financial 
reporting, disclosure and monitoring the effectiveness 
of the Credit Union, both internal and external control 
processes were entrusted to the team at the last AGM 
held in June 2017. The committee does understand the 
roles and responsibilities and therefore worked with 
other members of the Credit Union during the period, 
with the aim to fulfil the objectives.  

We want to express our gratitude to the members of the 
team who have worked with us during the period and 
has offered guidance and support. We look forward to 
working with the team to improve the overall objectives 
of the Credit Union. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Patricia Jumpp
Chairperson, Supervisory Committee
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE’S REPORT
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2017

In keeping with the Rules of the Lascelles 
Employees & Partners Co-operative Credit Union, 
the Board of Directors appointed the following 
persons to serve on the Nominating Committee:

Roger Simmonds  - Chairman
Vivene Edwards  - Member/Staff
Jacqueline Mason  - Member

Committee’s Mandate

The Committee’s mandate is to act within the 
framework of these Rules in selecting persons 
for nominations. The Committee was also guided 
by correspondence from the Registrar of Co-
operative Societies and Friendly Societies, which 
has indicated the need for Credit Unions to comply 
with term limits and to ensure that the nominated 
members are “fit and proper”, among other criteria.

The selection criteria for nominating members 
included, inter alia:

• Members confirm their willingness to serve 
and to dedicate sufficient time to the process

• Members are willing to complete the “Fit and 
Proper” exercise

• Member’s expertise and experience 
• Member’s loans are being satisfactorily 

serviced and have never been delinquent
• Members confirm their agreement to have 

their photo and profile posted on the credit 
union’s website

The Nominating Committee met on April 24, 2018 
and submits the following members for nomination 
to the Board of Directors, the Supervisory 
Committee and the Credit Committee. 

Board of Directors

The following Board of Directors retire at the 2018 
Annual General Meeting of the Credit Union:

1. Ryan Muir
2. Blossom McAnuff
3. Wayne Hardie

4. Nicole Graham
5. Ivy Lawrence
6. Richard Hutchinson
7. Owen Dillon

Richard Hutchinson and Owen Dillon joined the 
Board of Directors in October 2017, as per the terms 
of the merger with Nestle Jamaica Co-operative 
Credit Union Ltd., effective October 1, 2017. The 
Committee extends heartfelt appreciation and 
must recognize the yeoman service that these 
directors displayed as they carried out their service 
on the Board. They brought to life the quote by 
Elizabeth Andrew - “Volunteers do not necessarily 
have the time; they just have the heart.”

Ivy Lawrence and Nicole Graham in particular have 
completed three consecutive terms and are now 
acknowledged for providing guidance in ensuring 
compliance to all regulatory requirements and a 
truly organized and more efficient functioning of 
the activities/duties of the Board respectively. 
Mr. Benjamin Pringle is also acknowledged for 
his service on the Board for 5 consecutive years. 
He contributed in the area of IT but unfortunately 
will not be able to serve his second year. Michelle 
Bispott is being nominated to complete his term. 
We thank all members for their contribution and 
are pleased to now nominate the following persons 
for the next two (2) years:

1. Ryan Muir
2. Blossom McAnuff
3. Wayne Hardie
4. Richard Hutchinson 

Michelle Bispott is also being nominated to 
complete one year remaining for Benjamin Pringle.

The following Directors will retain office for 
another year:

1. Roger Simmonds
2. Maurice Bolt
3. Andrew Bell
4. Owen Dillon 
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Credit Committee

The Credit Committee, a most dedicated and hard 
working committee, has continued to sacrifice their 
time in attending meetings weekly, and providing 
support in a commendable way. The Nominating 
Committee takes this opportunity to truly thank 
them for their time, dedication, commitment and 
for showing that they are willing to serve the credit 
union in a meaningful way. The retiring volunteers 
are:

1. Monique Forrester
2. Dev Weller
3. Jody-Ann Harriott-Smith
4. Claudette Thomas-Warren
5. Laverne Williams-Reid
6. Jodian Beecher
7. Marvin Riley

Jodian Beecher and Marvin Riley joined the Credit 
Committee in October 2017, as per the terms 
of the merger with Nestle Jamaica Co-operative 
Credit Union Ltd., effective October 1, 2017.

Two members of the committee, Monique 
Forrester and Claudette Thomas-Warren have 
completed three consecutive terms and we 
express our sincere appreciation for their service 
on such a demanding committee as this. We also 
thank Marvin Riley for his service as he will not 
continue on the committee.

The following Credit Committee members are 
retaining office for another year:

1. Arlene Miles
2. Carol Morgan
3. Denese Anderson-Whyte
4. Wayne Clarke

The Committee is pleased to nominate the 
following persons to serve for two years:

1. Dev Weller
2. Jody-Ann Harriott-Smith
3. Laverne Williams-Reid
4. Jodian Beecher

Ricardo Hall is also being nominated to complete 
one year remaining for Marvin Riley. 

Supervisory Committee

The Nominating Committee thanks all members of 
the Supervisory Committee who have served over 
the past year. The retiring volunteers are:    

1. Michelle Blake (replaced Marcia Robinson)
2. Patricia Jumpp
3. Khadine Stewart
4. Linnette Hopkins
5. Ann-Marie Terrelonge
6. Robert Grandison
7. Andrew Gordon

Robert Grandison and Andrew Gordon joined 
the Supervisory Committee in October 2017, as 
per the terms of the merger with Nestle Jamaica      
Co-operative Credit Union Ltd., effective October 
1, 2017.

The Nominating Committee recognises the 
services provided by Ms. Marcia Robinson who 
resigned before her term was completed and Mrs. 
Linette Hopkins who served for the year.  We wish 
them all the best in their future endeavours.  

A special thank you also to Khadine Stewart who 
has served a full term limit. We thank her for her 
service during this time.

Accordingly, the committee nominates the 
following persons to serve for one year:

1. Patricia Jumpp
2. Ann-Marie Terrelonge
3. Robert Grandison
4. Andrew Gordon
5. Rupert Richards

The Nominating Committee is pleased to have 
had the opportunity to serve and looks forward 
to working with all stakeholders to ensure another 
productive and successful year for the Credit 
Union.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Roger Simmonds
Chairman
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Despite the challenges encountered during 2017, it could still be considered a rewarding year for the 
credit union. 

Membership Growth Analysis 

In 2017, the Credit Union welcomed 
only 480 new members including our 
new family members from the former 
Nestle Jamaica Co-operative Credit 
Union Ltd. This is a 265% growth over 
last year’s new membership growth 
of 181 new members. Without the 
“Transfer of Engagement” (merger) 
with Nestle Co-op, the growth 
over last year’s 181 is 39%. For the 
purpose of this Report, we will report 
on LEPCCU’s specific growth of 253 
new members. 

Of the 253 new accounts, 71 were from AJAS, 19 from J. Wray & Nephew, 5 from Kingston Industrial 
Garage, 3 from Carreras, 36 from Eclectic Security Services Ltd., 6 from Federated Pharmaceuticals, 6 
from Agricultural Chemicals, 5 from PolyPet, 1 from Select Brands, 6 from Guardian General Insurance 
Company Ltd, 11 from CamCorp, 3 from Ameco, 5 from Nestle (post-merger) and 2 from the Credit Union 
itself, new hires.  Family members of existing members, as well as employees of other companies account 
for 55 of the 234 new adult members. Of the 253, 19 were minor/child accounts. The corresponding 
individual percentage contribution to the overall growth is displayed below. AJAS was the single largest 
contributor to membership growth for 2017, as well as in 2016.
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These new members, contributed significantly to 
the financial growth of the Credit Union. The overall 
shares and deposits generated from these new 
members totaled $9,279,910.23, whilst loans taken, 
amount to $19,359,796.57.  Interest earned from 
these loans is $1,200,676.04. 

Membership Drive /Visits 2017

There were approximately 37 visits to member 
locations during the year. JWN 4; KIG 1, Carerras 
20, AgChem 2, AJAS 2, Federated Pharmaceutical 
2 and Camcorp 2, Select Brands 1, Nestle 2. Whilst 
on these visits, member complaints were addressed 
as best as possible, debit cards were issued and 
registration for online banking were completed.  The 
engagement and the activation of new membership 
was also done, along with the promotion of the 
products and services of the credit union.   

Product Development & Other Promotions

A wide variety of products and promotions were 
introduced during 2017

a. Red-Carpet Investment: high yield investment 
options were introduced to the membership. 

b. Savers’ Club: an exclusive club for savers was 
established, where members in this club are able 
to enjoy other benefits just because they are a 
member of the club e.g. 1% less on loan rates, 
lower processing fees, no waiting in lines and 
special giveaways.  *still available 

c. Double or Nuttn!: Members were able to deposit 
their monies and get a loan 2 times the amounts. 
The loan was given at a premium rate of interest! 
The doubling was not limited to those with new 
investments. Whatever was in the member’s 
account could be doubled.

d. Motor Vehicle Special: Two (2) motor vehicle 
specials were offered to boost the loan portfolio, 
to remind members that we also offer competitive 
rates and terms for motor vehicle loans.

e. Cash-EEN: at less than 8% interest, you can borrow 
to purchase home appliances and furniture. Why 
go to those higher purchase stores and pay up to 
50% on your household items. Borrow from us 
instead. * still available

Other Promotions offered during the year:

a. Valentine’s Day Special
b. Easter Loan
c. Christmas Loan

Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union League (JCCUL) 
Promotions:

a. Lucky Member – Access Plus Promotion: 
Members who used their debit cards 6 or more 
times during the months of 2017 stood a chance 

of winning $30,000 between February and 
November, or as much as $75,000 in December. 
Grannette Anderson, from our credit union was 
the November Lucky Member.  

In keeping with the needs of our members and responding 
to market trends, the following are some of the Services 
we are working on to roll out in our Anniversary Year 
(2018):

a. FD Gold
b. Gold Loan
c. Saving Competition

Market Trends

In 2018, the credit union will continue to rely heavily 
on market trends and will act proactively on the 
information it receives.

Saving / Investment Pattern:

I want more!: Other than the usual need to receive 
more interest on an investment, members continue 
to become more sensitized to other investment 
options, like mutual funds etc. Whilst the Credit 
Union sees the trend and appreciates same, it 
continues to offer some of the highest rates in the 
market to its members. It is our hope that with the 
impending implementation of the BOJ Regulations, 
we will be able to offer a more diverse slate of 
investment products to meet varying risk appetites.

We continue to urge our members to use our rates to 
their advantage and build wealth. The best products 
to help members accumulate funds quickly are; 
(1) Compounder (2) Golden Harvest and (3) Fixed 
Deposits. 

Borrowing Pattern:

Cash flow is critical!: With the emergence of so many 
micro-financing institutions, the options from where 
to borrow increase. Members, though loyal, continue 
to seek value, or what they perceive value to be, 
which is usually lower monthly repayments. From 
our experience, we find that many members borrow 
from these “loan sharks” and pay exorbitant interest 
over the life of their loan. The Credit Union must 
educate its members at every opportunity about the 
price they pay for the convenience of lower monthly 
payments, whilst the credit union will continue to 
work towards meeting all our members’ financial 
needs.

It’s my call!: The conventional boundaries of borrowing 
continue to appear as more of an obstruction, 
thereby creating barriers to borrow. With every 
day that goes by, the market truly becomes more 
and more consumer-driven. This is also augmented 
by the bigger financial institutions using the ‘law of 
numbers’ to increase their base and drive up their 
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overall income.  

Some obvious trends in borrowings and savings 
remain as seen in 2017:

a. Requests for extended repayment periods 
b. Increased requests for individualized interest 

rates 
c. Requests for higher unsecured limits

Service Delivery

The Credit Union recognizes that exceptional 
customer service is the hallmark of a successful entity 
and whilst we work to improve our service delivery, 
significant improvement is required.  As such, we 
seek your assistance by submitting your suggestions, 
observations, complaints directly to feedback@
lascellescreditunion.com. Emails sent to this address 
go directly to the Member Service Manager and all 
other members of the management team for a quick 
resolve.  

In keeping with the credit union’s drive to automate its 
services, members are being reminded that a number 
of transactions, check balances and reviews of the 
various products and services, can be processed or 
accessed utilizing online banking.

Members who have not received their debit cards 
are being invited to visit the office to receive and 
activate same. 

The Credit Union anticipates your assistance, as 
we continue to work towards exceeding your 
expectations. 

Scholarship and Outreach

Providing scholarships and maintaining our Outreach 
programmes continue to play a critical role in the 
work of the credit union.  As such, during 2017, 63 
recipients were awarded scholarships. 

• Norma Chin Scholarship – total value of 
$2,000,000.00.

 34 members at tertiary level, 3 children at the 
tertiary level, 14 children at GSAT level, 9 and 
children at CXC/CAPE level, 2 Special Needs and 
1 Community Child. 

• Outreach Programmes
 In December 2017, the Credit Union staff and 

volunteers visited Bustamante Children’s Hospital 
and the Golden Age Home. 

The spirit of giving will live on at the Credit Union 
and since concerns have been raised regarding the 
dates chosen for these outreach projects, we will be 
discussing with the relevant entities the possibility of 
visiting earlier in 2018.  We hope that a change in 
date will foster greater participation from members.

Major Upcoming Event:

September 19, 2018 marks our 50th Anniversary and 
several events are being planned to commemorate 
this milestone.  Stay tuned for information on these 
events. 

Current Products and Services 

Saving and Deposits Insurance Products
Share Accounts Family Indemnity Plan
Regular Deposit Accounts Loan Protection 
Youth/ Child Accounts Life Saving Protection
Fixed Deposit Accounts Golden Harvest 
Golden Harvest Accounts International Major
 Medical
USD Investor’s Edge Sagicor – Local Health
 Insurance
Partner Plus JCIA Group Life ($1M)
Compounder JCIA Creditor Life (up to
 $18M) 
Partner Supreme JCIA Personal Accident 
Challenge 50 
Max 5 

Savers’ Club

Loan Products Other Services
Share Loans Standing Order Facility
Loans Above Shares Direct upload to all
 major bank accounts 
Unsecured Loans Free Financial advice
Pay Day Loans ATM/ Debit Card Service 
Home Equity Loans Online Banking  
Motor Vehicle Loans
Education Loans
Borrowz Loan (seasonal)
Insurance Premium Financing 
Easi Access Credit Line
Cash Een 
…and others

Conclusion

Thank you for making Lascelles Employees & Partners 
Co-operative Credit Union your financial institution 
of choice during 2017.  We look forward to building 
stronger relationships in 2018.

…………………………………….
Zoe Ferril-Rhoden
Member Service & Marketing Manager
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The Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League’s 
76th Annual General Meeting (AGM) took place 
at the Hilton Rose Hall Hotel and Spa in Montego 
Bay on Saturday May 27, 2017 during the week-
end convention that spanned May 25 – 28, 2017. 
A number of sessions and activities took place 
leading up to the scheduled date of the AGM and 
thereafter.

The following persons were in attendance 
representing your credit union. 

Ryan Muir   – President
Ivy Lawrence   – Vice President
Andrew Bell   – Treasurer
Wayne Hardie   – Assistant Treasurer
Sherie Nash-Seymour  – General Manager

The Credit Union Manager’s Association held its 
AGM on Thursday, May 25, 2017. Other activities 
for that day included a riveting presentation by Dr. 
Herbert Gayle on the topic: “Violence and doing 
business in Jamaica”. Dr. Gayle left an impression 
when he covered statistics showing how our 
children, in particular our sons, are treated leaving 
an indelible mark on them, which impacts the 
violence in our society. 

The Friday activities started with the Women’s 
Global Network Breakfast meeting and 
the Presidents’ breakfast which took place 
simultaneously. The guest speaker at the 
Presidents’ breakfast was Mr. Gary Allen, CEO of 
the RJR Gleaner Communications Group. This was 
followed by the official opening of the conference 
with Action Coach Marcia Woon Choy being the 
main speaker. She spoke about motivation in the 
workplace and left very useful pointers for the 
leaders to implement in order to foster better work 
relations and to bring out the best in their teams. 

Two workshops were held on Friday afternoon and 
they were as follows:  

• “Building a Culture of Compliance: The Role of 
Board and Management”. The Presenter was 

Mr. Robin Sykes, Chief Technical Director of 
the Financial Investigation Division (FID).

• “IFRS9: What you need to know”: Presented by a 
Representative from PriceWaterhouseCoopers. 

The annual awards dinner ended the day. Guest 
speaker at this event was Mr. Owen “Blacka” Ellis, 
a Jamaican comedienne of note. 

The 76th Annual General Meeting was held on 
May 27, 2018. Twenty-five (25) Credit Unions 
numbering 137 participants attended the meeting.

In line with Parliamentary procedures, the newly 
elected President Mr. Winston Fletcher, gave a 
summary of the Board report for the year 2016.  
The Treasurer did the same for the financial reports 
and the chair of the supervisory committee also 
presented.

A total possible surplus distribution of $16.7 million 
for 2016 was identified by the Treasurer, compared 
to $28.14 million in 2015. Of this amount, $1M 
was set aside for a scholarship fund for recognition 
of the 75th Anniversary of the League. The bulk 
was cash interest as dividend on voluntary shares 
amounting to $6.3 million, while dividends on 
permanent shares amounted to $5.8 million.

The meeting voted to accept the nominations for 
the following persons to serve on the Board of 
JCCUL.

• Mrs. Brenda Cuthbert
• Mr. Jerry Hamilton
• Mr. Delroy Foster
• Ms. Carol Anglin
• Mr. Pete Smith
• Mr. Winston Fletcher 
• Mr. Lambert Johnson

They were elected to join the board of JCCUL for a 
term of 3 years.

DELEGATES’ REPORT
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2017
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For the Supervisory Committee the following 
persons were elected:

• Mr. Sefton Cummings
• Mrs. Tamara Baugh-Brissett
• Mr. Michael Sutherland
• Mrs. Ivy Lawrence
• Mr. Lenroy  Allen

RESOLUTIONS 

Six resolutions were passed at the meeting as 
follows:

• Congratulatory resolutions were received on 
behalf of:

• COK Sodality Credit Unions for 50 years of 
service

• NCB Employees Credit Union for 25 years of 
service 

• Former JCCUL President, Mr. Johnathan Brown 
for receiving a National Award: the Badge of 
Honour for Meritorious Service for dedicated 
service to the Jamaica Co-operative Credit 
Union League. 

• One Condolence resolution was passed on 
behalf of Mrs. Rosemarie Vernon, past director 
of the JTA Credit Union. 

• A resolution was passed to fund an Information 
Technology Project for the Credit Union 
Movement from the Stabilisation Fund. 

• A late submission of a resolution from First 
Heritage Credit Union, for past CEO, Mr. Basil 
Naar was also passed at the AGM.

RULE CHANGES 

There were no rule changes.

Following the AGM, the executive was elected 
to serve on the League Board for the 2017-2018 
period:

• Mr. Winston Fletcher - President
• Mr. Clide Nesbeth – 1st Vice President
• Mr. Lambert Johnson – 2nd Vice President
• Mrs. Andrea Messam – Treasurer
• Mr. Jerry Hamilton - Assistant Treasurer
• Mr. Norris Gilbert – Secretary

• Mr. Patrick Smith 
• Mr. Martin Blackwood
• Mr. O’Neil Grant
• Mr. Anthony Young
• Mr. Delroy Foster
• Ms. Carol Anglin
• Mrs. Brenda Cuthbert
• Mr. Derrick Tulloch
• Mr. Ryan Muir

It is with pride that we now have our President, 
Ryan Muir, serving on the League Board and 
our Vice President Ivy Lawrence, serving on the 
League’s Supervisory Committee. Congratulations 
to them both.

The conference ended officially on Sunday, May 28 
with an Ecumenical Service.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Delegate

DELEGATES’ REPORT
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The activities of Lascelles Employees 
& Partners Co-operative Credit 
Union (LEPCCU) Limited expose it 
to a variety of risks and as such, the 
credit union is subject to regulatory 
risk.  This type of risk arises from 
a failure to comply with regulatory 
and compliance requirements, and 
could have an adverse impact on the 
credit union.  If we fail to adequately 
address regulatory requirements, 
anti-money laundering regulations, 
and ethical practices to include 
conflicts of interest, this will pose 
risk of penalties and reputational 
damage for the credit union. As a 
consequence, we are expected to 
meet high standards in all our business 
endeavors. The Board, which has 
oversight for risk and compliance, has 
put in place a sub-committee (Risk & 
Compliance Committee), whose main 
responsibilities are to:

• Ensure that controls are 
implemented to mitigate and 
effectively manage all risks, so 
that there is no decline in the 
value (reputational risk) of the 
credit union.  

• Ensure that measures are put in 
place to meet the Bank of Jamaica 
(BOJ) regulations governing the 
licensing of the credit union, the 
fit and proper requirements and 
operational readiness.

• Ensure that transaction 
monitoring reporting is in 
place and the submission of 
the necessary regulatory and 
statutory reports is completed in 
a timely manner.  

• Ensure that KYC requirements 
are met; policies updated 
accordingly and training on risk 
and compliance are provided 
to employees, Board and other 
committee members. 

The Risk & Compliance Committee 
comprises the Vice President and 
Assistant Treasurer of the Board, 
the Chairman of the Supervisory 
Committee, the General Manager, 
Risk & Compliance Officer, Marketing/

Member Services Manager, Operations/Accounts 
Manager and the Credit Officer.  

In May 2017, the position of the Risk & Compliance 
Officer was filled by Miss Ann-Marie Thomas.  Miss 
Thomas is responsible for performing independent 
risk and compliance functions on behalf of the Credit 
Union and was appointed as the Nominated Officer 
for the credit union by the Board.  

2017 Activities

The Risk & Compliance Committee in positioning the 
credit union for the licensing by the Bank of Jamaica 
(BOJ), met on a quarterly basis to review areas of 
risk and compliance and to ensure that there is full 
adherence in this regard. During 2017, the following 
activities were conducted:

Filing of Reports

All the requisite regulatory reports were filed with 
the Designated Authority [Financial Investigations 
Division (FID)] and the statutory ones with the Tax 
Administration of Jamaica (TAJ).  All reports were 
filed within the required timeline.  

Training

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) training sessions 
were held with employees, directors and the other 
committee members.  Each participant was awarded 
a Certificate of Participation upon successful 
completion of the training.  In addition, emergency 
awareness sessions on earthquake were held with 
employees and the Board.  Sensitization sessions on 
Fit & Proper requirement were held with the Board 
and other ‘assigned’ committee members.

Continuous development of volunteers and staff 
is important to the growth of the credit union.  
Consequently, Lascelles has invested in the CPD 
online training facility with the League, which is 
accessible to all volunteers.

Regulations governing operations

A Political Exposed Persons (PEP) list was created 
to assist employees to readily identify individuals 
who are classified as such. In addition, circulars on 
matters relating to Fraud, Compliance and Know your 
Customer (KYC) were disseminated to employees 
and relevant committee members to apprise them of 
pertinent information.

The UN Sanction lists which reflect names of terrorists, 
both individuals and companies, are reviewed at 

RISK AND COMPLIANCE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
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regular intervals to ensure that these individuals and 
companies do not maintain relationship with us. 

The ‘Know your Customer (KYC) Drive’ is an ongoing 
regulatory process where requisite KYC information 
is updated during the course of the business 
relationship.  In an effort to ensure that KYC 
requirements are met, significant effort was placed 
on getting current identification for all members 
especially those whose accounts reflect an inactive 
or dormant status.  A number of letters were sent out 
to these members via registered mail.   We continue 
to foster a culture of compliance.
Safety Measures

Two (2) emergency wardens were elected and 
trained along with two (2) new employees on the 
use of the fire extinguisher. A fire drill exercise 
was successfully executed. In keeping with safety 
requirements, a number of ‘no smoking’ signs were 
erected within the credit union, two (2) emergency 
assembly signs were erected in the parking lot and 
a list of emergency numbers drafted and placed at 
employees’ workstations and other pertinent areas. 

Furthermore, a test of the security system was 
done to assess the timely response of the security 
company should an emergency arise.

Policies

During the period under review, a number of policies 
were reviewed and approved by the Board for 
implementation.

Internal Audit

The audit functions were performed in accordance 
with Internationally Accepted Auditing Standards 
and recommended risk assessment techniques.

Legal and Regulatory Compliance

Tests were conducted to review the level of 
compliance with internal policies and the relevant 
Laws and Regulations.

BOJ Readiness

The Risk Register, which was developed in 2016, 
was revised and submitted to the Board in July 2017. 
However, further assessment is being done on the 
objectives, risk events, mitigating actions, to ensure 
that the associated risks have been identified for each 
department. This will be resubmitted to the Board in 
2018.   Additionally, an Enterprise Risk Management 
(ERM) Policy, that supports the framework for the 
Risk Register, was developed and is being reviewed.  
The completed Policy will be sent to the Board for 
approval.

A Disaster Management and Business Continuity 

Plan was developed and submitted to the Board for 
review. However, additional information is required 
to capture the backup site and the information 
technology (IT) aspect, should the system be 
disrupted and the main location deemed inoperable. 

A Business Plan, an integral part of the credit union 
which details the proposed actions to accomplish 
the primary functions and objectives of the credit 
union covering a five (5) year period, was also 
developed during the 4th quarter of 2017.  This 
Plan is currently being reviewed to ensure that 
all pertinent information is captured to cover the 
projected financial position for an additional year.  

Corporate Governance

The Board’s main responsibilities for the Credit 
Union are:

• Setting the strategic plan and approval of the 
annual budget

• Ensure that resources are in place to meet the 
objectives of the Credit Union

• Oversee process of the risk management 
framework and internal control

• Good corporate governance practices

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to 
various Sub-Committees, namely; Marketing, Risk 
& Compliance, Information Technology (IT), Human 
Resource and Merger, in addition to the Finance, 
Credit and Supervisory Committees.  The Board 
has ultimate responsibility for the decisions and 
recommendations of these committees, with the 
decisions being ratified by the Board and recorded 
in the Minutes.

The Board has implemented a performance 
management system, which is an assessment of the 
Board, Credit and Supervisory Committees. This 
is to provide feedback on the effectiveness of the 
respective committees to better serve our members.

We thank the committee and staff for their ongoing 
support throughout the year and we look forward to 
continued co-operation from our members.   As we 
move forward into 2018 with great expectancy, we 
continue to work as a team towards implementing 
a risk-based approach in the way we operate as a 
credit union, so that we are better able to improve 
our compliance standards.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Ivy Lawrence
Chairperson, Risk & Compliance Committee

RISK AND COMPLIANCE REPORT
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VOLUNTEER PROFILES

Michelle Bispott is currently the Senior IT Manager of J Wray 
and Nephew Ltd where she has worked for the past 14 years.  
Michelle has served on the Board of Directors before and is no 
stranger to the Credit Union.  She has been an active Credit 
Union member since 2004 and is a champion of the credit union 
credo ‘people helping people’.  Mother of 2, she is an avid reader, 
environmentalist and enthusiastic urban farmer.  As a firm 
believer in the slogan ‘grow what you eat; eat what you grow’, 
in her spare time, she makes gourmet blends of teas and spices 
using her own locally grown, pesticide-free plants.  She will once 
again lend her expertise and insight to the Credit Union in the 

area of Information Technology.

Ricardo Hall is currently the Global IT Senior Specialist Sales 
& Marketing in the IT Department of J Wray and Nephew where 
he has worked for the past 4 years. Ricardo is a certified SAP 
Application Associate – Financial Accounting and Controlling 
and is currently pursuing being certified as a Certified Public 
Accountant (CPA) and Associate in SAP Sales and Distribution. 
He actively participates in a charity foundation, Pioneers of 
Hope. Ricardo is an avid reader in diverse topics, he likes to play 
basketball, video games and enjoys listening to music. His motto 

is ‘Keep Moving Forward’.

Mr. Rupert Richards is currently retired. He previously 
worked at Carreras for approximately 20 years in the Accounts 
Department, managing cash and stock. Prior to that he worked at 
the University of the West Indies Hospital  mainly in Accounting 

and also spent time working in their Audit department.

He has wide knowledge in accounting and is quiet meticulous in 
all he does. He currently spends most of his time volunteering 
and assisting those less fortunate. He enjoys listening to music 

and spending time with his family.
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